RECEIVED

Jan 07 2022

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Jean Hofer Toal, Chief Justice of the
South Carolina Supreme Court (Retired),
Acting as Circuit Court Judge

Case No.: 2021-000341

William F. Tomz and Frances W. Tomz,
Individually and as Class Representatives, Respondents

v.

Capital Investment Funding, LLC
by and through its Receiver, Jerry T. Saad, and Arthur M. Field,Defendants

Of Which Capital Investment Funding, LLC, by and through its Receiver,
Jerry T. Saad is a Respondent and Arthur M. Field is the Appellant.

In Re: Kathryn Taillon, Appellant.

INTRODUCTION

This is a complicated civil case that spans thirteen years of litigation in multiple forums,² and involves a related criminal case.³ At issue in this appeal are rulings in an Amended Order entered March 2, 2021, by retired Chief Justice Jean H. Toal, sitting on the Circuit Court. The Order is the latest step in this extended procedural history, briefly recapped below.

Appellant Arthur Field is a citizen and resident of Florida, who was the Defendant in the civil and criminal matters underlying the issues presented in this Appeal. Respondents William and Frances Tomz were the Class Representatives of most of the noteholders of Capital Investment Funding, LLC (“CIF”). CIF is an entity citizen of the State of South Carolina in winding up since January 2008. Jerry Saad was appointed CIF Receiver and its manager on August 24, 2009, in a judgment entered against CIF in *Tomz v. Capital Investment Funding, LLC and Arthur Field* (2008-CP-23-3665). Field was dismissed therefrom without prejudice by the Class, and implicitly dismissed with prejudice by CIF. (“Mediated Global Settlement Agreement 8/24/09”, ¶ 9)(Reserving the right to reinstitute only “any claim or action dismissed without prejudice” against Field solely to Class Counsel “within the time limit imposed by law or court rule.”) (R. pp.58—76, ¶9, R. pp.65-66)

² The actions include those listed below. Pursuant to R. 201(d), SCRE, Appellant Field requests this Court take judicial notice of the existence of these cases, including filing and closing dates, pleadings, and Orders. See, *Doe v. Bishop of Charleston*, 407 S.C. 128, 134 n.2, 754 S.E.2d 494, 497 n.2 (2014).

- a) *Tomz v. Capital Investment Funding, LLC, and Arthur Field*, 2008-CP-23-03665
- b) *Roberts, et al. v. Field, Capital Investment Funding, LLC, Taillon, et al.*, 2008-CP-23-05514
- c) *Robert E. Lee, et al. v. Bradford Financial Group, Arthur Field, et al.*, 2008-CP-39-1184
- d) *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Field, Taillon, et al.* 6:12-cv-03401-BHH-JDA (D.S.C.)
- e) *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Field, Taillon, et al.*, 6:13-cv-02326-BHH-JDA (D.S.C.)
- f) *Harold Brooks, et al. v. Arthur Field, et al.*, 6:14-CV-02267-BHH-JDA (D.S.C.)
- g) *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Arthur Field, Taillon, et al.*, 2015-CP-23-01263
- h) *Capital Investment Funding v. Calvary Asset Mgt., LLC, Robert Sypher, Elliot Salzman and Arthur Field*, BER-L-3790-12 (NJ 2012)
- i) *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Arthur Field*, CA18-1513 (Fla. 7th Jud. Dist.)(originally, *Saad v. Arthur Field*)
- j) *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Arthur Field and Kathryn Taillon*, 3:19-cv-0606-J-32JRK (M.D. Fla. 5/24/19)

³ *State of South Carolina v. Arthur Field*, 2012-GS-47-08.

The many civil cases in this matter were ended with a Global Mediated Settlement Agreement (hereafter, “GSA”). (3/10/2017) (R. pp.154-169) The GSA was negotiated in the mediation ordered by U.S. District Judge Bruce Hendricks during the litigation of *Brooks v. Field, et al.* (6:14-cv-02267-BHH-JDA). (“Order EDF#317” 8/18/2016) (R. pp.137-138) The parties’ negotiation lasted seven (7) months, was executed by twenty-four (24) persons or entities, and was entered into the record of the South Carolina District Court on March 20, 2017 (“Order EDF# 440”) (R. p.145) Judge Hendricks entered a *Rubin* Order dismissal on May 16, 2017 (“Order EDF#446”) (R. p.146)

On March 10, 2017, Receiver presented a “Motion to Approve Class Settlement and Ratify the Global Settlement Agreement dated 3/8/2017” as to the Class at a fairness hearing before the Honorable Edward W. Miller in 2008-CP-23-3665. (R. pp.297-299) Judge Miller reserved decision on that motion, pending a Motion to Modify Restitution that was to be filed in General Sessions in Anderson County as negotiated in GSA Paragraph 8. On November 1, 2017, the Honorable J. Cordell Maddox, Jr. heard Field’s Motion, supported by the Receiver, and entered an Order modifying Field’s restitution in 2012-GS-47-08. (R. pp.80-89) The GSA was ratified as to the Class in Greenville County by Judge Miller’s Order dated December 1, 2017, Rule 23, SCRCP. (R.pp.30-33)

Receiver subsequently initiated *Jerry Saad v. Arthur M. Field* (CA18-1513), an action in a Florida state court against Field’s homestead property. (7th Jud.Dist.Fl., 12/7/2018) (R. pp.690-693) Receiver sought to collect judgment based on the Order announced in South Carolina General Sessions by Judge Maddox on November 1, 2017.⁴ (R. p.693, EDF#4) On March 18, 2019, Field filed a statutory Notice of Homestead Exemption in St. Johns County, Florida. (O.R. Book 4695, p.793) (R. pp.204-205; R. p.693, EDF#39) The sale of Field’s property was canceled. (R. p.692, EDF#52) In response,

⁴ Appellant Field reserves all objections to such judgment and amounts therein.

CIF filed a ‘Petition Seeking Declaratory Judgment to Determine Homestead Exemption’ against Field, and newly-named defendant Taillon. (5/2/2019) (R. p.691, EDF#57; R. pp.487-495)

Taillon removed CIF’s action to federal court on May 22, 2019, which was then designated as *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Arthur Field and Kathryn Taillon*. (R. p.691, EDF#60; R. p.212, EDF #1, 3:19-cv-0606-J-32JRK) CIF’s Petition was entered therein. (R. p.212, EDF#3, 3:19-cv-0606) Counsel for each Taillon and Field moved to dismiss the Florida federal action (11/1/2019) (R. pp.496-514); and (11/15/2019) (R. pp.515-530) CIF did not respond to either dismissal motion.

At a December 3, 2019, status conference before U.S. District Court Judge Thomas J. Corrigan in the Middle District of Florida, disagreement arose over interpretation of the language of the GSA. CIF argued to Judge Corrigan the issues should be referred solely to South Carolina Circuit Court Judge Edward W. Miller because Judge Miller had special knowledge and expertise in this matter. (R. p.533, line 17—p.534, line 2) Counsel for Field and Taillon opposed CIF’s request for the stay. (12/24/2019) (R. pp.538-543)

On December 31, 2019, Receiver filed a “Motion for Declaratory Relief Related to CIF’s Judgment Collection Action in Florida” in Greenville County seeking to have Judge Miller answer the federal district court’s pending questions about the interpretation of the GSA. (R. pp.147-153)

Judge Corrigan issued a stay in the Florida federal case on February 19, 2020. (R. p.214, EDF#24)

In November, 2020, Judge Miller recused himself before ruling on any matter. The Honorable Jean H. Toal, retired from the South Carolina Supreme Court and sitting as a Circuit Court judge, was appointed to the case. (11/12/2020) (R. p.20)

Judge Corrigan continued the stay in the Florida federal case, at CIF’s requests (R. pp.553-558; pp.559-565), on February 26, 2021, (R. pp.100-101) over Field’s and Taillon’s objections. (R. p.215, EDF##37, 39, 48)

Chief Justice Toal entered an Amended Order as to CIF's Motion for Declaratory Relief on March 2, 2021. (R. pp.1-12) The Amended Order is presented here on appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On October 8, 2013, in the criminal case against Appellant Arthur Field, the Honorable J. Cordell Maddox, Jr., ordered, *inter alia*, Field to pay all the noteholder/victims \$2,877,711.73.

The many civil cases in this matter were ended with a Global Mediated Settlement Agreement ("GSA") (R. pp.154-169) negotiated as a result of the mediation ordered by U.S. District Judge Bruce Hendricks in the context of *Brooks v. Field, et al.*, 6:14-cv-02267-BHH-JDA. (R. pp.137-138, EDF #317.) Negotiation involving numerous parties lasted over seven (7) months and the resulting GSA was executed by twenty-four (24) persons or entities, and entered into the record of the South Carolina District Court March, 20 2017, when Judge Hendricks entered the initial *Rubin* Order, conditioned upon no change to the GSA. (R. p.145, EDF#440)

On March 10, 2017, Receiver presented a Motion to Ratify the GSA as to the Class at a fairness hearing before the Honorable Edward W. Miller in 2008-CP-23-3665. (R. pp.297-299) Judge Miller withheld decision on that motion, pending a Motion to Modify Restitution that was to be filed in General Sessions in Anderson County as negotiated in GSA Paragraph 8. (R. p.156, ¶8)

On November 1, 2017, Judge Maddox, having presided over the criminal matter, heard Field's Motion to Reconsider and Terminate Restitution. Field's motion was strongly supported by Receiver and the Class Counsel, but was opposed by the S.C. Attorney General's Office. Judge Maddox asked all parties to engage in negotiations related to restitution. (R. pp.81-82)

After the parties agreed any remaining unpaid restitution would be entered as a civil judgment at the conclusion of Field's probationary term to satisfy the Attorney General's concerns, Judge Maddox pronounced an Order on November 1, 2017, terminating all monthly restitution payments and modifying Field's 2013 Restitution Order. (R. pp.80-89) The Order, entered November 27, 2017,

referred to the victims as ‘all the noteholders of CIF’ and provided for a ‘civil judgment’ in accord with law, with only the amount of such judgment to be liquidated after the sale of Allyson Field’s residence, as set forth in GSA Paragraph 14(A). (R. pp.158-159) The GSA specified certain monies and property values, approximately \$1.6 Million, paid and transferred to CIF by Field, Taillon, and Allyson Field under GSA Paragraphs 14(A), 14(B), 14(C), 14(E) and 14(F) were to be credited towards Field “for purposes of rescinding [the 2013] restitution”, GSA ¶ 14(I)(v). (R. pp.158-166)

The GSA, including an Addendum drafted by CIF on November 27, 2017, (R. pp.180-184) was ratified as to the Class in Greenville County by Judge Miller’s Order dated December 1, 2017. (R. pp.30-33) The Addendum directly references the civil judgment pursuant to the applicable South Carolina law. (R. p.181, ¶1(iv))

GSA Paragraph 14(I)(ii) specifically provided that “Judge Edward W. Miller, the presiding judge in the *Tomz* Case, shall have the sole and exclusive jurisdiction regarding any dispute....” (R. pp.165-166, ¶14(I)(ii))

The GSA ended the 2008-CP-23-3665 case. CIF and Field were again dismissed with prejudice from it and all other cases, including 2015-CP-23-01263 (R. p.155, ¶¶ 3,5), and were released from any and all claims known or unknown. (R. p.155, ¶4; p.165, ¶14(I)(ii))

Receiver subsequently filed *Saad v. Arthur M. Field* (CA18-1513) in a Florida circuit court against Field’s Florida homestead property purporting to collect judgment based on the Order announced in South Carolina General Sessions on November 1, 2017—prior to the ratification of the GSA—converting unpaid restitution to a civil judgment. (R. pp.690-693) Pursuant to Florida law, Field filed a Notice of Homestead Exemption in the St. Johns County Official Records, O.R. 4695, p.973. (R. p.204.) Receiver then changed the named plaintiff to ‘Capital Investment Funding, LLC’ and filed a ‘Petition for Declaratory Judgment to Determine Homestead’ in CA18-1513 against Field and newly-named defendant Taillon. (R. pp.487-495)

Taillon removed CIF's action to federal court on May 22, 2019, which was re-designated as *Capital Investment Funding, LLC v. Arthur Field and Kathryn Taillon*. (R. p.212, EDF#1 3:19-cv-0606-J-32JRK) Counsel for each Field and Taillon moved to dismiss the Florida federal action based on preclusion and contractual release grounds. (R. pp.496-514, 11/1/2019); (R. pp.515-530, 11/15/2019) CIF did not respond to either dismissal motion.

At a December 3 2019, status conference before U.S. District Court Judge Thomas J. Corrigan in the Middle District of Florida, disagreement arose whether the plain language of the GSA barred Receiver's collection action. At issue was Field's Florida homestead property, and whether preclusion principles applied to those issues resolved in South Carolina by the GSA and the several dismissals with prejudice; and/or whether the plain language of the releases in the GSA barred the Florida action. CIF argued to Judge Corrigan the issues should be referred solely to South Carolina Circuit Court Judge Edward W. Miller because, "Judge Miller is familiar with the parties involved and extensively familiar with the facts of these claims and the procedural history of the GSA." (R. p.534, lines 1-2) Field and Taillon objected to CIF's request for a stay. (R. pp.538-543 12/24/2019) In February, 2020, the District Court granted CIF's request and indicated it would await Judge Miller's decision. (R. p.214, EDF#24)

Prior to Judge Corrigan's February 19, 2020, Order, on December 31, 2019, CIF returned to South Carolina state court to file a "Motion for Declaratory Relief Related to CIF's Judgment Collection Action in Florida" in the already-dismissed case, 2008-CP-23-3665. (R. pp.147-153) In its motion, CIF asked Judge Miller to declare CIF's judgment collection action in the United States District Court in the Middle District of Florida (3:19-cv-0606-J-32JRK) 'proper' under the terms of the GSA. (R. p.147, lines 1-6) CIF's motion also demanded monetary damages for breach of contract, and requested such be enforced through the Court's contempt powers. (R. p.147, lines 10-12; pp.152-153)

In response, Field attempted removal of the 2008-CP-23-3665 action to the South Carolina District Court on January 28, 2020. United States Magistrate Judge Jacquelyn Austin remanded the matter on February 6, 2020, finding that the Court lacked subject matter jurisdiction because the matter was closed. (6:20-cv-0312-BHH-JDA) (R. pp.94-99, i.e. R. p.98, lines 3-5)

On September 27, 2020, Field moved to recuse Judge Miller, and to dismiss Receiver's Motion for Declaratory Relief. (R. pp.351-454); (R. pp.192-206) CIF did not respond to the Motion to Dismiss.

The case was reassigned to retired Chief Justice Toal on November 12, 2020. (R. p.20)

On December 15, 2020, Chief Justice Toal denied Field's motion to recuse Judge Miller as moot. (R. pp.18-19)

On December 17, 2020, without a hearing and without reviewing Field's Motion to Dismiss, Chief Justice Toal granted CIF declaratory relief, awarded damages of \$250,000, and further provided such amount be added to Field's restitution order and collectable in Florida as part of the 2017 civil judgment. (R. pp.13-17)

On December 18, 2020, Field filed a Motion to Reconsider, Alter or Amend the December 17th Order. (R. pp.207-216) CIF again did not respond until ordered to do so by the Court. (R. pp.257-267) On January 25, 2021, Field filed a Response in Opposition. (R. pp.268-275)

On March 2, 2021, the Court entered an Amended Order modifying its December 17, 2020, Order. (R. pp.1-12) The Court re-styled CIF's motion as a 'Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement'. (R. p.5, sec. #3.) This appeal arises therefrom.

Because no hearings were held for the Amended Order being appealed here, there are no new transcripts and the record includes only the filings and orders entered in the several cases, all of which this Court may and is requested to take judicial notice pursuant to Rule 201(d), SCRE.

STANDARDS OF REVIEW

Declaratory Judgment. In order to determine the appropriate standard of review to apply in an appeal from a declaratory judgment action, which is neither ‘legal’ nor ‘equitable’, the Court of Appeals must look to the nature of the underlying action. *Consignment Sales LLC v. Tucker Oil Co.*, 391 S.C. 266, 705 S.E.2d 73 (Ct.App. 2011); *Judy v. Martin*, 381 S.C. 455, 674 S.E.2d 151 (2009); *Nationwide Mut.Ins.Co. v. Rhoden*, 398 S.C. 393, 728 S.E.2d 477 (2012).

CIF requested declaratory relief interpreting the Global Settlement Agreement, a contract. *Pee Dee Stores, Inc. v. Doyle*, 381 S.C. 234,241, 672 S.E.2d 799,802 (Ct.App. 2009). Because an action to construe or interpret a contract is an action of law, this Court reviews the matter *de novo*. *Crossmann Cmty.s. of N.C., Inc. v. Harleysville Mut. Ins. Co.*, 395 S.C. 40, 717 S.E.2d 589 (2011); *Fesmire v. Digh*, 385 S.C.296, 683 S.E.2d 803 (Ct.App. 2009). “Whether the language of a contract is ambiguous is a question of law for the court.” *Pee Dee Stores, supra*, citing *Auten v. Snipes*, 370 S.C. 664,669, 636 S.E.2d 644,646(Ct.App. 2006) .

Jury Trial. Whether a party is entitled to a jury trial is a question of law, which an appellate court reviews *de novo*, owing no deference to the [circuit court's] decision. *Carolina First Bank v. BADD, LLC*, 414 S.C. 289, 778 S.E.2d 106 (2015); *Guimarin & Doan, Inc. v. Georgetown Textile & Mfg Co.*, 249 S.C. 561, 155 S.E.2d 618 (1967).

Summary Judgment. When reviewing a grant of summary judgment, an appellate court applies the same standard used by the trial court under Rule 56, SCRPC. *Helms Realty, Inc. v. Gibson-Wall Co.*, 363 S.C. 334,340, 611 S.E.2d 485,488(2005); *Lanham v. Blue Cross and Blue Shield of S.C., Inc.*, 349 S.C. 356, 563 S.E.2d 331 (2002).

Subject Matter Jurisdiction. Lack of subject matter jurisdiction can be raised at any time, even for the first time on appeal, by a party or by the court. *Ex Parte Cannon*, 685 S.E.2d 814 (S.C.

App. 2009) *citing Lake v. Reeder Constr. Co.*, 330 S.C. 242, 498 S.E.2d 650 (Ct.App.1998). This is an appeal from the grant of a motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 12(b)(1), SCRC. “The question of subject matter jurisdiction is a question of law for the court...We are free to decide questions of law with no deference to the [circuit] court.” *Capital City Ins. Co. v. BP Staff, Inc.*, 382 S.C. 92, 99, 674 S.E.2d 524, 528 (Ct.App.2009).

Personal Jurisdiction. The Court may consider extrinsic evidence to determine issues of personal jurisdiction. *Sullivan v. Hawker Beechcraft Corp.*, 397 S.C. 143, 723 S.E.2d 835 (Ct.App. 2012) (dismissal affirmed) (plaintiff bears burden of proving personal jurisdiction pre-trial over a non-resident). Deference is given to the Circuit Court for findings of fact, unless no evidence exists to support such findings.

Res Judicata: Issues of preclusion and the *res judicata* effect of Settlement Agreements are questions of law and are reviewed *de novo*. *Doe v. Bishop of Charleston*, 407 S.C. 128, 754 S.E.2d 494 (2014) (Rehearing den.).

ARGUMENT

1. THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN NOT APPLYING THE S.C. UNIFORM DECLARATORY JUDGMENT ACT; AND IF THE ACT DID NOT APPLY, THE COURT DID NOT HAVE SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION.

- a. **Receiver's Motion is a Declaratory Judgment Action.**

Receiver CIF's instant state court filing by its caption, its contents, and its request, is brought under the South Carolina Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act, S.C. Code Ann. §15-53-10, *et seq.*, ("SCUDJA"). (R. pp.147-153) The Circuit Court's Amended Order of March 2, 2021, *sua sponte*, effectively rewrote CIF's Declaratory Judgment motion, re-styling it as a "Motion to Enforce Settlement Agreement," but the principal purpose of the filing remained an attempt by Receiver to employ the SCUDJA. (R. p.5, sec.#3) The Circuit Court committed harmful error and its Order should be overturned.

CIF's motion is captioned "Receiver's Motion for Declaratory Relief Related to CIF's Judgment Collection Action in Florida." Its opening sentence begins, "[p]ursuant to South Carolina Code of Laws §15-53-20" Receiver requests relief that relies on the SCUDJA: "[Receiver] moves for this Court to declare that its judgment collection action . . . is just and proper under the terms of the Global Settlement Agreement ("GSA")." (R. p.147, lines 1-6) The balance of Receiver's seven (7) page motion is (a) recitation of litigation history, (b) argument on the character of outstanding restitution, and (c) request for liquidated damages to be enforced by contempt. (R. pp.147-153)

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