THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In the Court of Appeals

RECEIVED
Feb 09 2022
SC Court of Appeals

William F. Tomz and Francis W. Tomz, Individually and
as Class Representatives, Respondents,

v.

Capital Investment Funding, LLC, by and through its
Receiver, Jerry T. Saad, and Arthur M. Field,
Defendants.

Of Which Capital Investment Funding, LLC, by and
Through its Receiver, Jerry T. Saad is a Respondent and
Arthur M. Field is the Appellant.

In Re: Kathryn Taillon, Appellant.

Appellate Case No. 2021-000341

The Honorable Jean Hofer Toal
Greenville County
Trial Court Case No. 2008-CP-23-03665

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENTS

George Brandt, III (SC Bar No. 00855)
Henderson, Brandt & Vieth, P.A.

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

ARGUMENT

I. THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE COURT RETAINED EXCLUSIVE SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION REGARDING INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE GLOBAL SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT (GSA) AND THE RECEIVER'S MOTION, WHICH SOUGHT AN INTERPRETATION OF THE GSA AS IT RELATES TO THE APPELLANT FIELD'S RESTITUTION. (RESPONSE TO APPELLANT FIELD'S ARGUMENT 1 AND APPELLANT TAILLON'S ARGUMENT B)

The arguments of the Appellants Field and Taillon that the Circuit Court did not have subject matter jurisdiction over the motion of the receiver and the class of noteholders to seek an interpretation of the global settlement agreement as it relates to the civil judgment involving Arthur M. Field's restitution should be rejected by the Court of Appeals. As the order of the Honorable Jean Hoefler Toal, Chief Justice of the South Carolina Supreme Court (Retired), acting as Circuit Court Judge, states:

By the GSA's terms, this court retains exclusive jurisdiction regarding interpretation and enforcement of the GSA. See, Page 5, Amended Order of Judge Toal, March 1, 2021. (R. p.5)

It is well settled under South Carolina law, that a court which creates a receivership draws to itself jurisdiction over all controversies concerning the assets and liabilities of the debtor in receivership. See, *National Cash Register Company v. Burns*, 217 S.C. 310, 60 S.E.2d 615 (1950). Also, under South Carolina law, a court of equity by taking jurisdiction over a matter and appointing a receiver, draws to it the right to hear and determine all claims involving the receiver and to completely adjudicate the receivership. *Hoile v. National Surety Corporation*, 204 S.C. 110, 28 S.E.2d 638 (1944).

As Judge Toal correctly pointed out, the receiver's motion, which was also a motion of the class of noteholders, "merely seeks to clarify the contents of the GSA which, in essence, is to seek an interpretation of the GSA as it relates to the restitution". (See, Order of Judge Toal, March 1, 2021, at Page 5 (R. p. 5).

In this matter, the motion of the receiver and the class of noteholders was clearly within the ambit of the Global Settlement Agreement and the exercise by Judge Toal of continuing jurisdiction over the enforcement of the GSA in this equity matter relating to the receivership, was clearly proper and in accordance with South Carolina law. The Appellants' arguments asserting that a separate lawsuit was required to be served and filed under the South Carolina Uniform Declaratory Judgments Act [S.C. Code o Laws Section 15-3-10, *et. seq*]. was properly rejected by the Circuit Court.

The arguments of the Appellants relating to the lack of jurisdiction of Judge Toal should be rejected by the Court of Appeals. As pointed out by Judge Toal in a footnote in her order dated March 1, 2021:

"Exclusive judicial assignment is the province of the Chief Justice of the South Carolina Supreme Court who retains the power to assign cases to individual judges as needed. When Judge Miller recused himself from this case, he did so after Field moved for his recusal. Chief Justice Beatty assigned the undersigned to replace Judge Miller pursuant to his authority under the constitution and laws of South Carolina." See, Order of Judge Toal, March 1, 2021, at Page 5 (R. p. 5, Footnote 4).

Accordingly, the Court of Appeals should reject the argument of the Appellants that the Circuit Court did not have jurisdiction to issue its orders entered on December 17, 2020, and March 1, 2021.

II. THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT THE COURT HAD PERSONAL JURISDICTION OVER ARTHUR M. FIELD AND THE ISSUES BEFORE THE COURT (RESPONSE TO APPELLANT FIELD'S ARGUMENT 2 AND APPELLANT TAILLON'S ARGUMENT A)

The Circuit Court correctly ruled that the court had personal jurisdiction over the Appellant Arthur M. Field and jurisdiction over the issues before the court. The arguments of the Appellant Field and the Appellant Taillon should be rejected by the Court of Appeals.

Judge Toal correctly stated in her order dated March 1, 2021, that the Appellant Arthur M. Field "signed the GSA, including Addendum" and agreed that this court would have sole and exclusive jurisdiction regarding any disputes relating to enforcement, performance, or non-performance. Field thus agreed to this court's exercise of personal jurisdiction over him and Taillon as it relates to the GSA. See, Order of Judge Toal dated March 1, 2021, Page 6 (R. p. 6).

The order appealed from also stated that:

"Despite the fact that Field misrepresents the timing of his Florida residency to this court, such is irrelevant to the current motion... The receiver's motion seeks to address matters specifically arising from the GSA. Field specifically consented to the jurisdiction of this court. His residency status before and after consenting to the GSA is irrelevant."
(R. p. 6).

It is well settled under South Carolina law that a trial court has inherent jurisdiction to enforce settlement agreements entered before it. *Kumar v. Third Generation, Inc.*, 472 S.E.2d 637 (S.C. App. 1995), citing *Rock Smith Chevrolet, Inc. v. Smith*, 309 S.C. 91, 419 S.E.2d 841 (Ct. App. 1992).

In this matter, the receiver and the class of noteholders made an appropriate motion in the Circuit Court for the interpretation and the enforcement of the Global Settlement Agreement in the receivership action (C.A. No.: 2008-CP-23-3665) and the order approving the GSA. Judge

Toal appropriately, acting as Circuit Court Judge with regard to the ongoing receivership, ruled that the Circuit Court had complete jurisdiction to enter its orders dated December 17, 2020 and March 2, 2021 in the receivership action in which the Global Settlement Agreement was approved and the order approving the Global Settlement Agreement was entered.

Accordingly, the arguments of the Appellants Field and Taillon relating to an asserted lack of personal jurisdiction over the Appellant Arthur M. Field and lack of subject matter jurisdiction over the issues addressed in the Orders of the Circuit Court on December 17, 2020 and March 2, 2021 should be denied by the Court of Appeals.

III. THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY RULED THAT AN AWARD OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES TO THE RECEIVER IN THE AMOUNT OF \$250,000 WAS APPLICABLE AND WARRANTED AND THE COURT'S IMPOSITION OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AGAINST THE APPELLANT FIELD WAS APPROPRIATE AND PROPER. (RESPONSE TO APPELLANT FIELD'S ARGUMENT 3 AND APPELLANT TAILLON'S ARGUMENT D)

The argument of the Appellant Arthur M. Field and the Appellant Kathryn Taillon to the effect that the Circuit Court erred in awarding liquidated damages against Arthur M. Field in the amount of \$250,000 should also be rejected by the Court of Appeals.

Judge Toal correctly ruled in the orders of December 17, 2020 and March 2, 2021, that the award of liquidated damages to the receiver against Arthur M. Field is applicable and warranted. The arguments of the Appellants in this regard are essentially a request to the Court of Appeals to make an erroneous interpretation and improperly construe the language and purpose of the liquidated damages provision in the Global Settlement Agreement.

Judge Toal correctly ruled that the Global Settlement Agreement included a liquidated damages clause to be imposed against any party who seeks to revoke or disqualify any term of this agreement for any reason. See, Order of Judge Toal March 2, 2021 at Page 7 (R. p. 7).

Judge Toal's order also quoted the liquidated damages clause which is contained in the Global Settlement Agreement, which stated as follows:

"Subsequent to the execution of this Agreement (and its approval by the Court) should any party file any suit or claim wherein he/she/they/it attempt(s) to revoke or disqualify any term of this Agreement for any reason, the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be entitled a minimum of \$250,000 as liquidated damages for defending, responding or enforcing the terms of this Agreement. This figure is based upon and derived from the estimated attorney's fees and expenses past litigation has entailed between/among these parties for addressing issues of similar scope and anticipated magnitude. The Court may award a greater sum upon a proper showing by the prevailing party." (R. p. 7).

The Order of Judge Toal included a copy of the signature of Arthur Field and witness, Kelly L. Cox to the liquidated damages clause. (R. p. 7).

Judge Toal correctly observed that:

"Field's attempt to argue he is no longer obligated to pay restitution per the GSA is an attempt to disqualify the terms of the GSA. Further, Defendant Field's multiple filings within the State of Florida and his repeated efforts to deny this court's jurisdiction and to delay a speedy and just resolution of the matters pending, amply justify the imposition of the \$250,000 liquidated damages assessment.

As to amount, Field specifically agreed to this amount when he negotiated and consented to the terms of the GSA. He cannot now argue that some other value or calculation is required.

As such, the Court finds, as the prevailing party, CIF is entitled to liquidated damages in the amount of \$250,000 against Defendant Field, and that such amount should be amended to any collection proceeding and/or judgment against him currently sought to be collected by Capital Investment Funding."

See, Order of Judge Toal dated March 2, 2021, Pages 7 and 8. (R. pp. 7-8).

was cognizant of the GSA provision that gave Judge Miller and this Court the sole jurisdiction over matters related to enforcement of the GSA.

Thereafter, the Receiver promptly filed a motion for declaratory relief so that the matter could be resolved and the collection action could move forward. Instead of responding to the merits, Field, *pro se*, removed the matter to Federal Court. After that, The Receiver for CIF was required to file a motion to remand the matter to the State Court and the Federal Court promptly dismissed Field's removal.

Knowing that his counsel has legislative immunity from the docket, with the Receiver's motion still pending in South Carolina, in April of 2020 Field filed a motion to lift the stay in Florida. Then, to further delay and avoid the resolution of the instant motion, rather than filing a substantive response, Field filed a judicial grievance against Judge Miller and promptly filed a motion to recuse Judge Miller from hearing this motion, based upon the grievance Field just filed.

At the November 18, 2020 Public Hearing of the Judiciary Merit Selection Committee, Field repeatedly lied and misrepresented facts in a vain attempt to harm Judge Miller's reappointment. Because Field's grievance was part of his overall strategy to delay justice in this case, the repeated misrepresentations Field made (under oath) at the hearing further support the imposition of liquidated damages.

a. Field lied about his crimes.

CHAIRMAN RANKIN: What did you plead guilty to?

MR. FIELD: I pleaded guilty to omitting three sentences from a prospectus, that led to counts of securities fraud. And the forgery count was for zero dollars, based on my signing a stage name from New York on a checking account that the bank knew was my checking account.

See, Receiver's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendant Arthur Field's Motion to Reconsider and/or to Alter or Amend the Court's Order of December 17, 2020, Page 6 (R. p. 262).

In fact, Field pled guilty to Eleven (11) Counts of Securities Fraud, Two (2) Counts of Criminal Conspiracy and One (1) Count of Forgery. See, Receiver's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendant Arthur Field's Motion to Reconsider and/or to Alter or Amend the Court's Order of December 17, 2020, Page 6 (R. p. 262).

In Field's statement that the forgery account was for "zero dollars, based upon [his] signing a stage name from New York, the bank knew it was my checking account," he omitted the fact that he used these forgeries to conceal from the class of noteholders the payments he received in his business dealings. The relevant excerpt from the indictment of Arthur M. Field demonstrate Field's misrepresentations concerning his hidden interest in "BolingBroke"

On September 27, 2001, an entity was registered with the Wyoming Secretary of State named Bolingbroke United (England) Ltd ("Bolingbroke")... Eventually, the registered agent listed with the Wyoming Secretary of State's Office was "Henry Rex", the supposed president of Bolingbroke... Additionally, a South Carolina Bank of America business investment account was opened on October 18, 2001 with the signatory listed as "H Rex". The Bolingbroke bank account used the PFEIFFER law firm address. For some reason, the bank did not certify the signature. **Ultimately, a number of checks would be issued on this account purportedly signed by "Henry Rex".**

Exhibit 4, pp. 7-8 (emphasis added).

FIELD used the fictitious name "Henry Rex" to conduct business for Bolingbroke, to further conceal FIELD's true ownership interest in Bolingbroke, and thus his interest in Cosimo.

Id. at p. 64

As indicated, Field's forgery was not a "zero dollars" forgery as he testified. The forgery was a vehicle he used to conceal hundreds of thousands of dollars from the class noteholders.

See, Receiver's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendant Arthur Field's Motion to Reconsider and/or to Alter or Amend the Court's Order of December 17, 2020, Page 7 (R. p. 263).

Additionally, Field lied about his personal contributions to the GSA settlement at the November 28, 2020 public hearing of the Judicial Merit Selection Commission involving Judge Miller. See, Receiver's Memorandum in Opposition to Defendant Arthur Field's Motion to Reconsider and/or to Alter or Amend the Court's Order of December 17, 2020, Pages 7-10 (R. pp. 263-266).

Arthur M. Field's motion to recuse Judge Miller and his motion to dismiss the motion of the receiver seeking a declaration from the court in the receivership action that the judgment collection action filed against Appellant Arthur M. Field is just and proper under the terms of the Global Settlement Agreement (GSA) are the continuation of a lifelong pattern of frivolous litigation tactics. Field specifically consented to have Judge Miller retain jurisdiction over the matters of the GSA. Field agreed to the liquidation damage provision. The receiver appropriately included the request for the enforcement of the liquidated damages provision given Field's lengthy history of lies and frivolous litigation. Judge Toal's order awarding liquidated damages should be affirmed by the Court of Appeals.

IV. THE CIRCUIT COURT CORRECTLY INTERPRETED THE GSA IN ACCORDANCE WITH ITS TERMS AND ITS ORDER SHOULD BE AFFIRMED BY THE COURT OF APPEALS. (RESPONSE TO APPELLANT FIELD'S ARGUMENTS 1, 2, AND 3 AND APPELLANT TAILLON'S ARGUMENT C)

The Appellants Arthur M. Field and Kathryn Taillon have both made arguments which are an effort to have the Court of Appeals make an erroneous interpretation of the provisions of the Global Settlement Agreement insofar as they relate to the receiver's effort to enforce the civil

judgment for restitution in the State of Florida. Judge Toal, in her Order filed March 2, 2021, correctly ruled that the Court of Common Pleas for Greenville County in Civil Action No.: 2008-CP-23-3665, which is an ongoing receivership action, had exclusive jurisdiction to interpret the Global Settlement Agreement as it relates to the propriety of the Receiver's action commenced in Florida seeking the enforcement of the Restitution Judgment entered against Arthur M. Field.

Judge Toal's order stated as follows:

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